



(Beginning) with the name of Allah – The most Gracious - The most Merciful

Bylaws of the

Pakistan Islamabad Chapter of

the Internet Society

ARTICLE 1: NAME, GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE AND APPLICABILITY

- 1.1 These are the *Bylaws for the Chapter*, which shall be called “The Pakistan Islamabad Chapter of the Internet Society” (the “Chapter”), a chapter of the Internet Society (the “Internet Society” or “ISOC”).
- 1.2 In short form, the Chapter may be called “Internet Society Pakistan Islamabad Chapter” or “ISOC Pakistan Islamabad Chapter”.
- 1.3 The Chapter will serve the community residing in Islamabad and surrounding areas; nonexclusive basis.
- 1.4 Nothing in these Bylaws shall be against or in violation any of the following:
 - a. Constitution of Islamic Republic of Pakistan and all relevant laws, rules and regulations.
 - b. Local applicable laws pertaining to indicated geographical presence.
 - c. Internet Society Bylaws, Rules and Regulations.
- 1.5 These Bylaws will be applicable to personnel and organizations who become member of this Chapter.
- 1.6 Individual and organizations will not be considered members unless they acknowledge in writing to read and understood these Bylaws.
- 1.7 These Bylaws shall be made publicly available.
- 1.8 These Bylaws may be freely used without any prior permission by ISOC chapters or ISOC chapter (in-formation) by giving due reference and credit.
- 1.9 Any proposed changes to these Chapter Bylaws need to be approved by the Internet Society after being presented to the Chapter membership for a vote.

ARTICLE 2: TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

For the context of this document, terms mentioned below have the following meanings

Active member	Chapter member who has paid all dues and has at least attended two Chapter meetings in past calendar year. Includes Lifetime members. Only for once and till the first approval of these Bylaws, active members would be founding members and all other members who have attended at least five chapter in-formation meetings till formal floating of these Bylaws for approval.
Affiliate member	Chapter member who has paid all dues but could not attend required number of meetings for 'Active' status.
Bylaws	Bylaws of 'The Pakistan Islamabad Chapter of the Internet Society'.
Calendar Year	Standard year starting from 01 Jan to 31 Dec.
Chapter	The Pakistan Islamabad Chapter of the Internet Society.
Citizen	Citizen of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.
BoD	Board of Directors which sets strategic direction of the Chapter and oversees functioning of the officers.
Founding member	Chapter member who participated actively during formation of the Chapter and has been notified as such in Chapter charter application.
Honorary member	Members especially approved by General Assembly having no voting rights.
In-Active member	Member whose Chapter dues are past more than six (6) months.
Individual member	Member who is more than eighteen (18) years of age on start of calendar but does not need voting rights.
Lifetime member	Members especially approved by General Assembly having voting rights.
Officer	Office bearers of the Chapter duly elected by its member.
Organization member	Member institutions or companies who formally support ISOC and Chapter objectives.
Professional member	Member who is full time employee or self-employed having age 18 years or more on start of calendar year.
Resident	Resident of Islamabad and surrounding areas living or working locally for more

than 183 days in last calendar year.

**Standing
Committee**

A committee approved by BoD for a period of 6 months or more.

Student member

Member who is full time registered student and is eighteen (18) years or more of age on start of calendar. Does not include students enrolled in 'Executive' or non-regular 'Evening' programs.

**Temporary
Committee**

A committee approved by BoD for a period of 6 months or less.

Term

Period between three consecutive Annual General Meeting. Approximately two years plus/minus one month. For officers, two years. For Board of Directors, three years.

Young member

Chapter member who is younger than age of Eighteen (18) on start of calendar year.

ARTICLE 3: PURPOSE, OBJECTIVES AND OPERATIONS

- 3.1 The general purpose of the Chapter shall be to advance and promote the General Purpose and Guiding Principles of ISOC by serving the interests of the global Internet community through a local presence.
- 3.2 The Chapter specific objectives will be:
 - a. Protecting the open and innovative use of Internet.
 - b. Engaging and educating the next generation of Internet users and helping them shape the evolution of Internet.
 - c. Providing multi stakeholder forum for the exchange of views and experiences on Internet.
 - d. Engaging in a wide range of Internet educational initiatives.
 - e. Promoting the expansion of Internet access at all levels of the local community.
 - f. Providing forum for professional networking and knowledge sharing. (SG)
- 3.3 The Chapter shall run in an open, transparent and 'Not-for-Profit' basis.
- 3.4 The Chapter shall operate in a non-discriminative manner.
- 3.5 The Chapter and its associated operations shall be displayed and be observed in conformation to article 3.3 and 3.4 above.

ARTICLE 4: GENERAL ASSEMBLY – AUTHORITY AND OPERATION

- 4.1 The General Assembly is the sovereign body of the Chapter that includes all its members.
- 4.2 The General Assembly shall hold its annual meeting at the end of calendar year during the period 1 December to 31 January, both days inclusive.
- 4.3 The General Assembly may be called for meeting for extra ordinary purposes as deemed fit by ISOC or Board of Directors.
- 4.4 All members can attend General Assembly meetings.
- 4.5 Only Active members may vote, raise a motion, resolution or objection during course of General Assembly Meeting.
- 4.6 For the purpose of motion, resolution or objection, the matter shall be supported by at least one more Active member for consideration and registration by General Assembly and if required voting.
- 4.7 General Assembly shall have the following authority with simple majority:
 - a. Confirmation of Board of Directors members.
 - b. Confirmation of Permanent Officers.
 - c. Confirmation of Honorary members.
 - d. Confirmation of Lifetime members.
 - e. Confirmation of annual membership dues.
- 4.8 General Assembly shall have the following authority with 70% majority:
 - a. Confirmation, addition, deletion, modification of full or any part of these Bylaws only at Annual General Assembly Meetings. Only for once, first General Assembly meeting will also be treated as Annual General Assembly Meeting.
 - b. Prosecution / Trial / Impeachment of Board of Directors members.
 - c. Prosecution / Trial / Impeachment of Officers.
 - d. Revocation of membership of any member due to unbecoming character.
 - e. Dissolution of the Chapter.

ARTICLE 5: BOARD OF DIRECTORS – AUTHORITY AND OPERATION

- 5.1 The Board of Directors (BoD) shall serve as the governing body giving strategic direction to the Chapter and oversee the functioning of the officers.
- 5.2 The BoD shall consist of no fewer than three (3) and no more than fifteen (15) volunteer active members. The exact number shall be confirmed by General Assembly on start of each meeting.
- 5.3 The BoD member shall be an adult citizen, resident and active member. The member shall be physically and mentally fit to carry out his/her duties.
- 5.4 The BoD, to the best extent possible, shall have representation from Industry, Academia and Government. However, absence of any sector representation, will still keep the BoD intact.
- 5.5 The BoD term shall be of three years commencing just after the confirmation by General Assembly.
- 5.6 The BoD shall appoint its chair and vice chair from within itself and work on principle basis of simple majority. Only in case of tie, the BoD chair vote will be decisive.
- 5.7 The BoD shall have following authorities:
 - a. Financial approval amounting to Pak Rupees 20,000/- or more.
 - b. Approval with respect to nomination for:
 - i. Educational and Research Scholarship.
 - ii. Representation of Chapter members (sponsored by chapter) for meetings abroad and outstation.
 - c. Confirmation of MoU with other organizations, institutions, companies etc.
 - d. Modification / Deletion, as the case be, of any article in these Bylaws found in violation of Article 1.4 with two third majority of the BoD and presented before the General Body meeting.
 - e. Call extra ordinary General Assembly meetings as deemed fit on case to case basis but not more than three times in a calendar year.
 - f. Approval of Standing Committees and Temporary Committees on recommendation of the President.
 - g. Approval of support officers on recommendation of the President.
 - h. Dissolution of Standing and Temporary Committees on recommendation of the President or a BoD member.
- 5.8 The BoD shall meet at least twice in a calendar year with no two consecutive meetings held a far more than six (6) months.

- 5.9 Following shall be ineligible for members for BoD:
- a. Found guilty or convicted by any local, national or international court of law, tribunal or authority.
 - b. Being executive BoD member for consecutive three terms.
 - c. Being executive BoD member or Officer for cumulative of five terms in past 16 years.
- 5.10 The BoD shall report to the General Assembly in relation to their progress on actions taken as per their roles.
- 5.11 Position on BoD shall deem to exist in the following:
- a. As added and approved by General Assembly meeting.
 - b. On death, physical or mental incapacitation or resignation of BoD member.
 - c. Relinquishing of citizen ship or resident status of a BoD member
 - d. When a BoD member does not attend any BoD meeting continuously for a nine months.
- 5.12 When a position on BoD exists due to Article 5.11, the BoD chair shall call extra ordinary General Assembly meeting within 1 month upon receiving of such notice except when such notice is received on or after 15 October of current year; in that case the matter shall be tabled at annual General Assembly meeting.
- 5.13 In case where Article 5.11(b) and 5.10(c) applies to BoD chair, the remaining BoD shall appoint another BoD chair within 15 days.
- 5.14 Only for once, the initial elected council members will have their initial term till first annual general meeting if their serving period is more than 6 months otherwise the initial term will extend to second annual general meeting. This initial term will not be counted towards restriction as mentioned in Article 5.9.
- 5.15 The BoD chair, in consultation with other BoD members, may invite any other member/s or non-member as observer or for advice.
- 5.16 The minutes of BoD meeting shall be available publicly for all Chapter members.

ARTICLE 6: OFFICERS – RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITIES

- 6.1 The Chapter shall have at minimum the following Officers:
- a. President
 - b. Vice President
 - c. General Secretary
 - d. Treasurer
- 6.2 The officer shall be an adult citizen, resident and active member. The officer shall be physically and mentally fit to carry out his/her duties. The officer shall volunteer for the respective role.
- 6.3 The officers shall be answerable primarily to BoD and subsequently to the General Assembly.
- 6.4 The officers shall have the following responsibilities:
- i. **President**
 - a. The President is the principal officer and is responsible for leading the Chapter and managing its activities in accordance with the policies and procedures of the ISOC, the Chapter Bylaws and the strategic direction set by BoD.
 - b. S/He shall preside at all regular meetings of the Chapter.
 - c. S/He shall review Annual Chapter Report, Annual Chapter Financial Report and Monthly Chapter Activity Report.
 - d. S/He shall have the financial authority to approve following :
 - a. Petty expenditures amounting to less than Rs 500/- daily with maximum cumulating to Pak Rs 10,000/- in a month.
 - b. Single expenditures amounting to less than Pak Rs 20,000/- quarterly.
 - e. S/He shall recommend the appropriate and suitable names to BoD for any Education and Research Scholarship and for any representation of Chapter members for meeting abroad or outstation.
 - f. S/He shall recommend the appropriate and suitable names for forming different standing and temporary committees, as the case may be and deemed fit, including their chair.
 - g. Call extra ordinary General Assembly meeting in consultation with BoD.
 - ii. **Vice President**
 - a. The Vice-President shall preside regular chapter meetings in absence of President.
 - b. S/He shall review Annual Chapter Report, Annual Chapter Financial Report and Monthly Chapter Activity Report.

- c. Take over General Secretary duties in his/her absence only during General Assembly meetings.
- d. S/He may assume other responsibilities as assigned by BoD.

iii. **General Secretary**

- a. The General Secretary shall record, draft, keep attendance record and issue all minutes of regular Chapter Meeting after getting concurrence from President.
- b. The General Secretary shall issue all minutes of BoD meeting on mailing list and website after getting input from BoD Chair or Vice Chair.
- c. S/He shall prepare Annual Chapter Report for Chapter Annual General Assembly meeting.
- d. S/He shall prepare Chapter's monthly activity report and submit to ISOC after review by President and Vice- President.
- e. S/He shall notify ISOC of any change in BoD members and Officers.
- f. S/he shall submit ISOC any proposed change in these Bylaws prior presenting to General Assembly for voting.
- g. Take over 'Treasurer' duties in his/her absence only during Annual General Assembly Meetings.

iv. **Treasurer**

- a. The Treasurer shall collect dues, pay all bills, and maintain the Chapter's financial records.
- b. S/He shall prepare Chapter's annual financial report for Chapter annual General Assembly meeting.
- c. S/He shall submit Chapter's annual financial report to ISOC after review by President and Vice President.

6.5 If required and on case to case basis, Officers may have assistant/s on recommendation and due approval by the President and the BoD respectively.

6.6 Following shall be ineligible for being an Officer:

- a. Found guilty or convicted by any local, national or international court of law, tribunal or authority.
- b. Being Officer on a single position for consecutive two terms.
- c. Being Officer in any position or BoD member for cumulative of five terms in past 16 years.

6.7 Position for Officer shall deem to exist in the following:

- a. As added and approved by annual General Assembly meeting.
- b. On death, physical or mental incapacitation or resignation of officer.
- c. Relinquishing of citizen ship or resident status of an officer.
- d. When an officer does not attend any regular meeting continuously for 6 months.

- 6.8 When a position for an officer exists due to Article 6.7, the BoD chair or President shall call extra ordinary General Assembly meeting within 15 days upon receiving of such notice except when such notice is received on or after 15 October of current year; in that case the matter shall be tabled at annual General Assembly meeting.
- 6.9 Only for once, the initial elected Officer will have their initial term till first annual general meeting if their serving period is more than 179 days otherwise the initial term will extend to second annual general meeting. This initial term will not be counted towards restriction as mentioned in Article 6.6.

ARTICLE 7: STANDING COMMITTEES AND TEMPORARY COMMITTEES

- 7.1 The President may form, recommend and nominate members, including its chair, for different committees for carrying out specific job, interest or goal.
- 7.2 If a committee is to be formed for a period of six (6) months but not more than term duration of incumbent officers then it shall be called as 'Standing Committee'. If a committee duration is lesser than 179 days then it shall be called as 'Temporary Committee'.
- 7.3 The final approval of committees, its' charters, members and chair rests with BoD. However, any reasons for deviation to the President's recommendations shall be duly recorded in Proceedings and Minutes.
- 7.4 A committee shall have at least three (3) members who shall opt voluntarily for the required specific job.
- 7.5 A committee shall stand automatically dissolved after expiry of its stipulated time as indicated in its charter unless timely extension/s given. For temporary committee, the President can approve extension/s not exceeding the total duration of 179 days. For standing committee, the President can recommend and the BoD can approve extension/s.
- 7.6 The standing and temporary committee chair shall furnish a progress report to the BoD, duly reviewed by the President, on 6 month basis and two month basis respectively and on expiry of the committee stipulated time.
- 7.7 Once a committee is formed, the BoD shall not dissolve it unless a progress report or the reasons for not rendering a progress report has been rendered by its chair.
- 7.8 In case of death or prolonged absence (more than 50% of the stipulated time of the committee) or incapacitation of a committee chair or one of its members, the committee shall continue to work. For temporary committee, the President shall appoint another suitable chair from the existing committee members or appoint suitable alternative for another member from the Chapter within seven (7) days of receipt of information. For standing committee, the President shall recommend and the BoD shall approve another suitable member within twenty one (21) days of receipt of information.

ARTICLE 8: MEMBERSHIP LEVELS, STATUS, DUES

8.1 The Chapter shall have two broad levels of memberships:

- a. Personal Membership
- b. Organization Membership

8.2 Personal membership will be sub divided into following categories:

a. **Young Member:**

This membership will be open to person having age lesser than eighteen (18) on start of a calendar year. This membership will not have any annual fees. The member will not have voting rights. The member will not be eligible for officer or BoD positions.

b. **Individual Member:**

This membership will be open to person having age eighteen or more on start of calendar year. This membership will not have any annual fees. The member will not have voting rights. The member will not be eligible for officer or BoD positions.

c. **Student Member:**

This membership will be open to person registered as full time students and having age eighteen (18) or more on start of calendar year. This membership does not include persons enrolled in 'Executive' or non-regular 'Evening' programs. The member will have voting right.

d. **Professional Member:**

This membership will be open to person being full time employed or being self-employed and having age eighteen or more on start of calendar year. The member will have voting right.

e. **Honorary Member:**

This membership will be recommended by BoD for person who contributed extra ordinarily in pursuance of ISOC's and the Chapter's mission and objectives. The member will not have any annual fees. The member will not have voting right neither s/he will be eligible for officer or BoD positions. This membership will be approved by General Assembly.

f. **Lifetime Member:**

This membership will be recommended by BoD for members who remained in 'Active' status consecutively for ten (10) years, five years (5) for founding members, and contributed significantly for ISOC's and Chapter mission and objectives. The member will have their annual dues waived and will have lifetime 'Active' status. The member will have voting rights. This membership will be approved by General Assembly.

g. **Founding Member:**

This membership status is for those Chapter members who participated actively during formation of the Chapter and has been notified as such in Chapter charter application. This membership status will be cumulative to other membership categories except Honorary.

8.3 The Corporate membership will be for institutions, organizations, companies etc. working in the Geographical interest area of the Chapter and who formally agree to support ISOC's and Chapter's mission and objectives.

8.4 All personal members shall also be the member of ISOC except Honorary members.

8.5 Personal membership will cease to exist in case of the following:

- a. Death.
- b. Resignation.
- c. Character unbecoming – duly recommended and approved by BoD and General Assembly respectively.
- d. Found guilty or convicted by any local, national or international court of law, tribunal or authority.
- e. Membership dues over by three years.

8.6 Organization membership will cease to exist in case of the following:

- a. Dissolution or Liquidation of the organization.
- b. Formal membership cancellation notice by organization 'C' level management.
- c. Membership dues over by three years.

8.7 Membership dues will be ascertained by BoD and approved at annual General Assembly meeting.

8.8 Student membership dues will not be more than 50% of the Professional membership dues.

8.9 Membership dues will be non-refundable and non-transferable.

8.10 Initial membership dues are mentioned s below:

- a. Student - Rs. 100/-
- b. Professional - Rs. 1,000/-
- c. Organization - Rs. 10,000/-

8.11 BoD may offer discount for the membership dues during promotional activities, conferences, seminars or other important events/days as deemed fit.

ARTICLE 9: MEETINGS – LOCATION, ATTENDANCE, QUORUM, NOTICE

9.1 The Chapter shall hold meetings at location which are open, accessible and accommodative to the intended member participants.

9.2 Attendance in the meeting may be in Person, tele-conference and online audio/video conference. The organizers shall undertake all out efforts to support maximum attendance options for meeting participants.

9.3 Proxy participation, attendance and voting are not allowed.

9.4 Following types of meetings shall be planned:

No.	Meeting	Participants	Interval	Chair
a	Annual General Assembly	All members	Yearly	BoD Chair or Vice Chair
b	Extra Ordinary General Assembly	All members	Maximum three in a year	BoD Chair or President – who calls the meeting
c	BoD	BoD members, Officers and other participants / members as deemed fit by BoD	6 months max	BoD Chair or Vice Chair
d	Regular	All members	3 months max	President
e	Standing Committee	Committee members. BoD members and officers at their discretion. Other members or open at discretion of committee chair	1 month max	Committee chair
f	Temporary Committee	Committee members. BoD members and officers at their discretion. Other members or open at discretion of committee chair	2 weeks max	Committee chair

9.5 Any meeting shall not be considered held nor shall any of its actions be considered authorized unless Quorum and notice requirements are met.

9.6 Quorum and notice requirements for different categories of meeting are hereby mentioned:

No.	Meeting	Quorum	Notice
a	Annual General Assembly	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. BoD chair or Vice chair II. President or Vice President III. General Secretary or Treasurer IV. Two BoD Members V. 20% of voting members or 50 voting members whichever is lesser 	Minimum 30 days
b	Extra Ordinary General Assembly	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. President or BoD chair who called the meeting II. General Secretary or Vice President III. Two BoD Members IV. 20% of voting members or 30 voting members whichever is lesser 	Minimum 21 days
c	BoD	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. BoD chair or Vice chair II. Simple Majority 	Minimum 7 days or earlier if all BoD members agree
d	Regular	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. President or Vice President II. 10% of membership strength or 20 members 	Minimum 15 days
e	Standing Committee	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. Committee chair or nominated vice committee chair II. Simple majority 	Minimum 10 days
f	Temporary Committee	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> I. Committee chair or nominated vice committee chair II. Simple majority 	Minimum 7 days

9.7 Notice for call of meetings may be send through website, email, Social Media, SMS, telephone, postal mail, and/or courier.

9.8 Notice for General Assembly meetings shall be undertaken by at least three means, compulsory including website placement and email.

9.9 Notice for other meetings shall be undertaken by at least two means, compulsory including email, unless positive confirmation is received by using single medium.

9.10 In pursuance to Article 3.3 & 3.4, voting wherever applicable during meetings shall be held in open unless majority of present Active members request for 'secret/closed' voting. The deviation shall be duly recorded in meeting minutes.

ARTICLE 10: COMPENSATION, ENUMERATION AND DISBURSEMENT

10.1 Participation in Chapter activities is on pure voluntarily basis. Hence, no member is authorized to claim any compensation or enumeration for attending any Chapter meetings or activities.

10.2 BoD members, Officers, Committee members are not authorized to claim any compensation or enumeration for their time, resources and services rendered except where reasonably felt in regard to performance of their duties and prior approved as following:

- a. For Committee members - Approved by President with restrictions imposed vide Article 6.4 (d).
- b) For Officers - Approved by BoD.
- c) For BoD Members - Approved by General Assembly.

10.3 Post facto approvals are not allowed except for Article 10.2 (c) when it may not be feasible to call extra ordinary General Assembly meeting and only and only when BoD member undertook expenditure from his/her pocket in order to perform duties which could be subsequently approved by General Assembly. In no case BoD members are authorized to draw, in advance, any expenditure from Chapters assets or accounts.

10.4 Treasurer shall make disbursement related to Chapter expenditures only and only when s/he is personally satisfied that requirements sets forth in the Bylaws are met and due formal approval and records are available.

10.5 The instruments for disbursement shall be signed by Treasurer and President or Vice President in his absence for the following:

- a. Petty expenditures amounting to less than Rs 500/- daily with maximum cumulating to Rs 10,000/- in a month and Rs 20,000/- quarterly.
- b. Single expenditures amounting to less than Pak Rs 20,000/- quarterly.
- c. In case of absence of Treasurer for more than 3 days, General Secretary may sign the instruments.

10.6 Any contract or transaction between the Chapter and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of its BoD members or officers are directors, shareholders, or officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void unless:

- a. The material facts as to this relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed in advance, documented and are known to the BoD members and officers and they authorizes the contract or transaction in good faith by the affirmative

vote of a 70% majority of the disinterested BoD members and officers even if the Quorum conditions are not met only and only for the voting purpose on this issue.

b. The contract or transaction is fair to the Chapter as of the time the contract and transaction is authorized, approved, or ratified by the BoD.

ARTICLE 11: LIABILITIES AND INDEMNIFICATION

- 11.1 BoD members, officers and committee members shall not be personally liable for the debts, liabilities, or other obligations of the Chapter.
- 11.2 BoD members, officers, committee members of the Chapter shall be indemnified by the Chapter to the fullest extent permissible under the applicable laws against all loss, damage, expense or charge incurred or suffered by him or her arising by reason of his or her having been a BoD member, officer, committee member of the Chapter (whether or not he or she continues to be a BoD member, officer, or committee member at the time of incurring or suffering such loss, damage, expense or charge), except for any loss, damage, expense or charge caused by his or her own negligence, willful misconduct, or fraudulent act.

ARTICLE 12: DISSOLUTION

12.1 Dissolution of the Chapter or its various functioning components is given below:

a. **BoD:**

- i. BoD shall deem to be dissolved if it does not hold any meeting for 12 months.
- ii. In the event of occurrence of Article 12.a.i, an extra ordinary general assembly meeting shall be called by President to appoint a new BoD.

b. **Standing Committee:**

- i. Standing committee shall deem to be dissolved if it does not hold any meeting for three months.
- ii. In the event of occurrence of Article 12.b.i, the President shall constitute and BoD shall approve another committee.

c. **Temporary Committee:**

- i. Temporary committee shall deem to be dissolved if it does not hold any meeting for forty five (45) days.
- ii. In the event of occurrence of Article 12.c.i, the President shall constitute and BoD shall approve another committee.

d. **Chapter:**

The Chapter shall deem to be dissolved in case of any of the following:

- a. Annual General Assembly Meeting is not held consecutively for two years.
- b. By 70% majority vote of Active member except when Active members desirous to keep Chapter running are twenty five or more.
- c. Numbers of Active members are less than ten (10).
- d. Dissolution of ISOC.

12.2 When the Chapter is dissolved then all of its assets will be transferred to a NGO working for the similar cause or working for advancement of Internet in order of the following:

- a. Presence and Registration in Local area.
- b. Presence and Registration in Pakistan.
- c. Registration abroad and presence in Local area.
- d. Registration abroad and presence in Pakistan.